AXIS FINANCE

AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
DIRECTOR’S REPORT - 2014-2015
Dear Members,
The Board of Directors is pleased to submit the 20% Annual Report of your Company together with Audited
accounts for the financial year April 1, 2014 to March 31, 2015.

1. Financial Results of the Company

Particulars Current Financial Year Previous Financial
31.03.15 AYear 31.03.14
Revenue from Operations (Net) and other income 2,242,610,984 760,317,793
Profit/{Loss) before Tax 1,173,917,332 505,119,995
Provision for Taxation 392,272,287 170,348,168
Profit/{Loss) after Tax 781,645,045 334,771,827
Balance brought forward from previous year 589,445,574 321,673,747
Profit available for appropriation 1,371,090,619 656,445,574
APPROPRIATI'ONS_
Interim Eqdi.ty Iﬁ:i:ridend 0 0
Proposed Final Equity Dividend 0 o
‘Tax on Equity Dividends 0 0
Previous Year Tax on Equity Dividends 0] 4]
General Reserve 0
Transfer to Statutory Reserve 156,400,000 67,000,000
Surplus carried to the next year's account 1,214,690,619 589,445,574

2. Dividend
Your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year ended on 31st March 2015 as the Company is in

expansionary phase and capital is required for increase in the business.

3. Disclosures about capital infusion during the year and reserves transferred to the P & L account.
In order to expand the business activities, the company re-classified by converting all the Preference Shares
into equity resulting in Authorised Share Capital of Rs.3,00,00,00,000 divided into 30,00,00,000 Equity Shares
of Rs.10/- each and increased its Authorized Share Capital from Rs.300,00,00,000 to Rs.3,30,00,00,000 divided
into 33,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each vide resoiution passed at the AGM held on 28.07.14.
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® AXIS FINANCE

Your company also issued 6, 25, 00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each for cash at a premium of Rs.6 per Share on

Rights Basis.
The total Issued and Paid-up Capital as on March 2015 is Rs. 3,18,25,00,000/-.
No reserves was transferred to the P&L Account.

4. Issuance of Debentures.
During the year, the Company issued Non- Convertible Debentures in 13 tranches aggregating to Rs.

3,98,40,00,000

5. Any change in shareholding pattern, material changes in the financial position of the company and
commitments from the previous financial year till the current year.

The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Axis Bank Limited. There is no change in shareholding pattern of

the Company during the year expect that the company also issued é, 25, 00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each

for cash at a premium of Rs.6 per Share on Rights Basis to Axis Bank Limited.

6. Extracts of the Annual Return of the Company:

Extracts of the Annual Return of the Company is enclosed herewith as Annexure — |

7. Number of meetings of the Board:
Your Directors are pleased to inform that [7] Board Meetings were conducted during the Financial Year 2014-
15. Board meetings were held in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act. Dates of the Board

Meetings are as mentioned below:

BM No. bate of BM
111 10.04.2014
112 15.05.2014
113 03.07.2014
114 16.09.2014
115 28.10.2014
116 21.01.2015
117 10.03.2015
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8. Details about directors and KMPs wha were appointed/resigned during the financial year.

i) Details of Directors

Sr Name Destgnation Appt/Resign W.e.f Remarks
1 | Mr. Nilesh Shah Director Resigned 05.01.2015
2 | Mr. V R Kaundinya | Independent Appointed 26.02.2015 | Appointed by the sharehoclders
Director at the EGM heid on 26.02.2015
3 | Mrs. Madhu | Independent Appointed 26.02.2015 | Appointed by the shareholders
Dubhashi Director at the EGM held on 26.02.2015
i) Details of KMP
Sr Name Des.ignation Appt/Resign W.e.f Rémarks
1 | Mg'Bipin Kumar Saraf MD Appointed | 16.04.2014
2 | Mr. Amith lyer CFO Appointed 03.07.2014
3 Mr. Rajneesh Kumar cs Appainted 14.04.2013

9. Directors retiring by rotation
In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr Bapi Munshi, Director of the Company retire
by rotation and are eligible for re-appointment. Accordingly the appointment has been included in the Notice

convening the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

10. A statement on declaration given by independent directors
All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down

under Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

11. Directors Responsibility Statement

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by them,

your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013

{a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2015, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any;

(b} the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of

the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;
Page3 of 9
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(¢} The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e} The directors, have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

(f) The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws

and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

12. Auditors

1) Re-appeointment of Statutory Auditors:
The Company’s Auditors, Messrs S.R Batliboi, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai who retire at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting of the Company are eligible for reappointment tili the conclusion of 23 Annual
General Meeting of the Company. They have confirmed their eligibility under Section 141 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder for reappointment as Auditors of the Company.

i) Appointment of internal Auditor:
The Company has appointed M/s. J.K.Khanna & CO., Chartered Accountants (FRN 301003E), as an Internal

Auditor of the Company for the Financial year 2014-15 or thereafter till July 30, 2015.

13. Committees

i} Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of the Company was re-constituted during the year and currently members comprise
of Mr. V.R Kaundinya, Mrs. Madhu Dubhashi and Mr. Bapi Munshi. Dates of the Audit Committee Meetings

are as mentioned below:

Sr. No Dates of the Meetings
1 10.04.2014
2 03.07.2014
3 28.10.2014
4. 21.01.2015

Page 4 of 9

%



()

i

v)

14.
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Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee of the Company was re-constituted during the year and currently members
comprise of Mr. V.R Kaundinya, Mrs. Madhu Dubhashi, Mr. Bapi Munshi and Mr. Bipin Kumar Saraf. Dates

of the Nomination Committee Meetings are as mentioned below:

Sr. No Dates of the Meetings

1 10.04.14

Risk Management Committee
The Risk Management Committee of the Company was re-constituted during the year and currently
members comprise of Mrs. Madhu Dubhashi, Mr. Bapi Munshi and Mr. Bipin Kumar Saraf. Dates of the

Risk Management.Committee Meetings are as mentioned below:

Sf. No Dates of the Meetings
1 10.04.14
2 03.07.14
3 28.10.14
4, 21.01.2015
CSR Committee

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Company was constituted during the year and
currently members comprise of, Mrs. Madhu Dubhashi, Mr. Bapi Munshi and Mr. Bipin Kumar Saraf. Dates

of the CSR Committee Meetings are as mentioned below:

Sr. No Dates of the Meetings

1 21.01.15

As per Sub Section 1 of Section 178 policies on appointment and remuneration including criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters provided
under sub-section (3) of section 178

The Company has a Nomination and Remuneration Policy formulated in compliance with Section 178 of
the Companies Act, 2013 réad along with the applicable rules thereto as amended from time to time. The

policy shall apply to all Directors (Executive and Non Executive), Key Managerial Personnel and Senior

‘Management. The Policy laid down the roles of the Committee, criterion for appointment of Directors, Key

Managerial Personnel and Senior Management and parameters for determining the remuneration of

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and other employees.
Page 5 0f 9
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15.

16.

17.

13.

19.

20.

Reservation and qualification on Auditor Report.
The notes to Accounts referred to in the Auditor’s Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for

any further comments. Auditors have not made any reservation or qualification in the Audit Report.

Secretarial Audit report given by Company Secretary in practice

pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has éppointed Messrs MC &
Associates, a firm of Company Secretaries in Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company.

The Report of the Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as Annexure il

In case of loans guarantees or investments given by company under section 186, disclosures for the
same.
Details of lLoans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the

Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in sub-section {1) of section
188.

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s length
basis and were in the ordinary course of business. There are no materially significant refated party
transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other
designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. All
Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee as also the Board for approval. Prior
omnibus approva! of the Audit Committee is obtained for the transactions which are of a foreseen and
repetitive nature. The transactions entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval so granted are audited
and a statement giving details of all related party transactions is placed before the Audit Committee. None

of the Directors has any pecuniary relationship or transactions vis-a-vis the Company.

Management Discussions and Analysis

The Management and Discussion Analysis is annexed herewith as Annexure lil.

Amcunt carried to reserves
An amount of Rs. 156.40 Lacs have been transferred to Statutory Reserves as required under Section 45-

IC of the Reserves Bank of India Act.
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21. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the company which have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial statements relate
and the date of the report
In terms of the information required under Sub-section {3){i} of Section 134 it is to be noted that there is
no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going

concern status and company’s operations in future.

22. Conservation of energy & technology absorption and Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo
A. Since the Company does not carry any rﬁanufacturin’g activities, particulars to be disclosed with respect
to Conservation of energy & technology absorption under Section 134 (3) {m) of Companies Act, 2013
read with Companies {Accounts} Rules, 2014 are not applicable.

B. During the year under review there has beenno earnings and outgo in foreign exchange.

23. Details on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy and its implementation
CSR Policy.has been framed in accordanice with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
framed thereunder. As part of its initiatives under “Corporate Social Responsibility” (CSR), the
Company has undertaken projects in the areas of Education, Livelihood, Health, Water and Sanitation.
These projects are largely in accordance with Schedule Vit of the Companies Act, 2013, The Company
had transferred Rs.53,56,390/- to Axis Bank Eoundation on March 20, 2015 for the purpose of

expenditure towards CSR activities.

24. Disclosures about annual performance evaluation by the directors of the Company of its own and
committees and individual directors
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee lays down the criteria for performance evaluation of
independent directors and other directors, 8oard of Directors and Committees of the Board of Directors.
The criteria for performance evaluation covers the areas relevant to their functioning as independent

directors or other directors, member of Board or Committees of the Board.

25. Details relating to deposits
During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposit pursuant to Section 73 and

section 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.
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26. Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the

27.

28.

29

30

+

going concern status and company’s operations in future.
There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts of Tribunals which would

impact the going concern status and the Company’s future operations.

Details in respect of adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its
operations. The scope and authority of the Internal Audit {1A) function is defined in the Internal Audit
Charter. To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit function reports to the Chairman
of the Audit Committee of the Board. The Internal Audit Department monitors and evaluates the efficacy
and adequacy of internal control system in the Company, its compliance with operating systems,
accounting procedures and policies at all locations of the Campany and its subsidiaries. Based on the report
of internat audit function, process owners undertake corrective action in their respective areas and thereby
strengthen the controls. Significant audit observations and cerrective actions thereon are presented to the

Audit Committee of the Board.

Vigil Mechanism [ Whistle Blower Policy

The Company-has.adopted the code of conduct for employee and also directors for the highest degree
of transparency, integrity, accountability and corporate social responsibility. Any actual or potential
violation of the Code would be a matter of serious concern for the Company. The Company also has

Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instance of fraud and mismanagement, if any.

Employees of the Company are encouraged to use guidance provided in the Policy for reporting all

allegations of suspected improper activities.

information in terms of under Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel Rules, 2014 )

The information pertaining to Rule 5 of the Company {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial

‘Personnel Rules, 2014) is enclosed herewith as Annexure IV

Acknowledgement
The Directors gratefully acknowledge all stakeholders of the Company viz. customers, members, dealers,

vendors, banks and other business partners for the excellent support received from them during the year.
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The Directors place on record their sincere appreciation to all employees of the Company for their

unstinted commitment and continued contribution to the Company.

31. Cautionary Statement
Statements in the Board’s Report describing the Company’s objectives, expectations or farecasts may be
forward-looking within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual resufts may differ
materially from those expressed in the statement. Important factors that could influence the Company’s
operations include global and domestic demand and supply conditions affecting selling prices of finished
goods, input availability and prices, changes in government regulations, tax laws, economic developments

within the country and other factors such as litigation and industrial relations.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

C\AA YO M

SRINIVASAN VARADARAJAN BIPIN KUMAR SARAF
CHAIRMAN MANAGING DIRECTOR & CEO

Date: 227 May 2015
Place Mumbai
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022 AXIS FENANCE LIMITED

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year ended on March 31, 2015

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12{1) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014}

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) CIN: - U65921MH1995PLC212675

ii) Registration Date

-27/04/1995

iii) Name of the Company: AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

ivi CATEGORY OF THE COMPANY: - [PL. TICK]

{1} Public Company-Vv

{2} Private company —

SUB CATEGORY OF THE COMPANY: - {PLEASE TICK WHICHEVER ARE APPLICABLE]

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6}
7)
8)
9)

Government Company -

Smail Company -

One Person Company -

Subsidiary of Foreign Company -

NBFC -V
Guarantee Company -
Limited by shares - v

Unlimited Company -

Company having share capital - v

10} Company not having share capital -

11} Company Registered under Section 8 --

v} Address of the Registered Office and contact detalls

Address : Axis House, Ground Floor, Wadia International Centre, Worli
ToWn./ City : Mumbai

District : Mumbai

State: Maharashtra

Telephone :{With STD Area Code Number) | 022- 43255717
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AXIS FINANCE

Pin Code

400025

Fax Number :

022-4325 5732

Email Address :

Rajneesh.Kumar@axisbank.com

Website (if any)

http://www.axisfinance.co.in/

vi} Whether Shares Listed On Recognized Stock Exchange(5} —No

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Name of Registrar & Transfer Agents: KARVY COMPUTERSHARE PVT. LTD.

Address : Karvy House, 46, Avenue 4, Street No.1, Banjara Hills
Town / City : Hyderabad
District : Hyderabad
State : Telengana

Telephone :(With STD Area Code Number)

040 - 23312454

Pin Code

500 034

Fax Number :

040 - 23311968

Email Address :

Varghese@karvy.com

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of

the total turnover of the company shall be stated:

Sl. No. Name and Description of main products / NIC Code of the % to total turnover of
services Product/ service the company

1 Interest on Loans 65923 85.10

2 Income from Processing Fees 12.50

li. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S. Name and Address CIN/GLN Holding / Subsidiary/ | % of shares Applicable
No. of the Company Associate held section
1 Axis Bank Limited L65110GJ1993PLC020769 | Holding : 100* Section 2{46)
Add:

*Including 60 shares held by individuals as Nominee of Axis Bank Limited. {Beneficial ownership is with Axis Bank

Limited.}

Notel- As per Balance sheet there is no investment, so there is no sitbsidiary.

Note 2-As per the definition of Associate Company “associate company”, in relation to another company, means

a company in which that other company has a significant influence, but which is not a subsidiary company of the

company having such influence and includes a joint venture company.
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Explanation.—For the purposes of this clause, “significant influence” means control of at least twenty per cent
of total share capital, or of husiness decisions under an agreement;

Therefore there is no Associate Company.

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the No, of Shares held at % Change during the year
Shareholders beginning of the year the end of the year
Demat | Physical Total % of Demat | Physical Total % of
Total Total
Shares Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian
a} Individual /HUF 25,57,4 | 60 25,57.5 100* 31,824 | 50 31,82,5 100* 24.44%
b} Central Govt 9,940* 0,000%* 4,950* 0,000*

¢} State Govt (s)
d) Bodies Corp.
e) Banks / FI

f) Any

Other....
Sub-total {A) {1):-
{2) Foreign

a) NRls -
Individuals

b} Other -
Individuals

¢) Bodies Corp.
d) Banks / fl

e} Any Other....
Sub-total {A) (2)- | 25,57,5 | © 25,57,5 | 100* 31,825 | 0 31,82,5 | 100* 24.44%
Total 0,000* 0,000* 0,000* 0,000
shareholding of
Promoter {A) =
{AN1)+{AN2)

B. Public

Shareholding
1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds
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h) Banks / Fi

c) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s}
e} Venture Capital
Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) Fits

fh} Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)
Sub-total (B)(1):-

2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian

if) Overseas

b} Individuals

i} Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upio
Rs. 1 lakh

i} Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital in
excessof Rs 1
lakh

c) Others
{specify)
Sub-total {(B){2}:-

Totai Public
Shareholding
{B)=(B){1)+
{B){2)
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C. Shares held by

Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total 25,57,50,000* 31,82,50,000*

{A+B+C}
*Including 60 shares held by individuals as Nominee of Axis Bank Limited {Beneficial ownership of which is with

Axis Bank Limited.)

it} Shareholding of Promoters

sl Shareholder’s | Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year
Neo Name
No. of Shares | % of total %of Shares No. of Shares | % of total %of Shares % change in
Shares of Pledged / Shares of Pledged / shareholding
the encumbered the encumbered during the
company to total company to total year
shares shares
1 Axis Bank 25,57,50,000 | 100* NIL 31,82,50,000 | 100* NIL 24.44%
Limited
Totat 25,57,50,000 100* NiL 31,82,50,000 | 100* MIL 24.44%

* Including 60-shares held by individuals as Nominee of Axis Bank Limited (Beneficial ownership of which is with

Axis Bank Limited.)

iii} Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl. No. Particutars Shareholding at the beginning of | Cumuiative Sharehoiding during
the year the year
No. of shares | % of total shares No. of % of total shares
_of the company shares of the company
At the beginning of the year 25,57,50,000 100* 25,57,50,000 | 100*
1 01.01.2015- Allotment of Equity | 6,25,00,000 31,82,50,000 100*
Shares on Rights basis 7
At the End of the year 31,82,50,000 31,82,50,000 100*

* Including 60 shares held by individuals as Nominee of Axis Bank Limited {Beneficial ownership of which is with

Axis Bank Limited.}

Note-Date wise Increase

inerease-f-decreasete.g: Allotment £ transfer/tbonus/sweatequity etel:
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iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders {other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs
and ADRs}: NA
Note- 100% shares are heid by Axis Bank Limited, the helding Company including 60 shares held by individuals

as Nominee of Axis Bank Limited (beneficial ownership of which is with Axis Bank.)

v} Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. Name Designation Shareholding at the Cumulative Sharehoiding

No beginning of the year during the year

No.of | % of total shares | No.of | % of total shares

shares | of the company | shares of the company

At the Beginning of the year:

1 *Srinivasan Varadarajan Directer 10 Negligible 10 Negligible

2 *Bipin Kumar Saraf D & CEO 7 710 Negligible 10 Negligib'le

At the End of the year:

1 *Srinivasan Varadarajan Director 10 Negligible 10 Negligible

2 | *Bipin Kumar Saraf MD&CEQ | 10 Negligible 10 Negligible

* held as-a nominee of Axis Bank Limited

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans Unsecured Déposits Total

excluding depaosits Loans Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial
year
i) Principal Amount 2,764,328,623 5,244,105,968 NIL 8,008,434,591
it} Interest due but not paid” NIL NiL NiL NIL
iii) Interest accrued but not due NIL NIL NIL ML
Total (i+ii+iii) 2,764,328,623 5,244,105,968 NIL 8,008,434,591
Change in Indebtedness during the financial
year
»  Addition 18,003,720,047 201,231,6583,315 NIL 218,235,413,362
» Reduction 12,272,927,234 186,289,397,536 NIL 158,562,324,770
Net Change 5,730,792,813 14,942,295,779 NIL 20,673,088,592
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Indebtedness at the

end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 8,495,121,436 2(5,186,401,747 NIL 28,681,523,183
it} Interest due but not paid NIL NIL Nil. NIL

iii} Interest accrued but not due 55,267,531 NiL NIL 55,267,531
Total (i+ii+iii) 8,550,388,967 20,186,401,747 NiL 28,736,790,714

Vi. REMUNERATION QF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
Sk Na. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD Total Amt. (Rs. in Lacs)
Mr. Bipin Kumar Saraf
1 Gross salary 63.28
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17{1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites ufs 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 11.93
{c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) lhcomef NIL
tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option NIL
3 Sweat EqUity 'NIL
4 Comrmission as % of profit N
S Others, please specify 29.00
Variable Incentives
Total (A) 104.21
Ceiling as per the Act 586.96
*5% of the net profit calculated as pér Section 198
B. Remuneration to other directors:
Sl. no. Particulars of Remuneration Mame of Directors Total Amount
1. ‘independent Directors Mr. V.R Mrs. Madhu
Kaundinya Dubhashi
» Feefor attending board / committee meetings Rs. 50,000 Rs. 1,00,000 Rs. 1,50,000
3 Commission NIL NI NIL
»  Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL
Total {1} Rs. 1,50,000
2. Other Non-Executive Directors NiL NIL
¥ Fee for attending board / committee meetings
Page 7 0f 8
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sk no. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
Company CFO Total
Secretary {Rs. In Lacs}
1 Gross salary 24.42 39.52 £63.94

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in

section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

{b} value of perquisites w/s 17(2} Income-tax | NIL NIL NIL
Act, 1961
{c) Profits in lieu of salary under section NIL NIL NiL

17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option NIL NIL NIL

3 Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL

4 Commission as % of profit NiL NiL NIL

5 Others 5.11 17.15 22.26
Total 29.53 56.67 86.20

VIi. PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES (Under the Companies Act): NONE
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MO & Assodiates

Company Secretaries

103, A Wing, Gurul- rupa Saciety, N. C. Kelkar Road
Opp. Plaza Cinema, Dedar, Mumbai - 400 028

022 2437404 wiww.ngassociates coin

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 2014 - 2015

[Pursuant ta section 204(1} of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies {Appointment
. and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014}

T,
The Membaers,
AXIS FINANCE LIMITED.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by AXIS FINANCE LIMITED herein after called "the
Company”. Secretariat Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasenable hasis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereen.

Rased an our verification of the AXIS FINANCE LIMITED books, papers, minute books, ferms and
retarns filed and ather records maintained by the Corapany and also the information, management
representation and legal opinions provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the corduct of secretarial audit, We hersby report that in out opinion, the
Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March, 2015, complied
with the stztutory provisions listed hereunder and also thet the Company has proper Board-
processes and complance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

We. have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2015, according to the
pravisions oft

i, The Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"} and the rules made thereunder;

fi. The Securifies Contracts {Regulation) Act, 1956 ["SCRA”} and the rules made thersundet;

#il, The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct thvestment and External Commercial
Borrowings; -Not Applicable.

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 ["SEBI Act’):-

a. The Secuvities and Exchange Board of India {Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers} Repulations, 2011; -Not Applicable

p——



AIC & Associates
Company Secretaries

We further report that there are adequate systems and provesses in the Company tommensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
faws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the Company has specific events / wctions which is
atiached to the report as Anpexure IL

For MU & Assoclates

Miten Chawda
FCS No: 6949
CPNo:11625

Place: Mumbai

Date: 23 fos[am ¢




MC & Aszociates
Company Secretaries

List of Specific Events

Annexure I

Remarks

Baard's
Approval

Members
Approval

‘lssue of Commercial Paper aggregating to Rs. 20,00,00,00.000/- {Rupess Two

Thousand Crores Only).*

10.04.14

issue Of Non Convertible Debentures aggregating up to Rs. 4,00,00,00,000/- (Rupees
Four Hundred Crores only).*

10.04.14

investment in preference shares of Axis Asset Management Company Limited
aggregating to Rs. 20,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Crores only).

The Company has filed Form C6 1 vide SRN C50075027 dated 16.04.15 wrtdehy in
fiting of e-formt MGT 14 for above referred matter,

15.05.14

Cancellation & Reclassification of 40,00,000 (Farty Lakhs only) Preference Shares of
Rs.100/- { Rupees One Hundred Only} each inte 4,00,00,800 {Four Crores only)
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each and resultant alezration of Capital
Clause of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association,

03.07.14

28.07.14

Increase in Authorised Share Capital of the Company from Rs. 3.00,00,08,000/-

{Rupees Three Hundred Crores only} vo Rs. 3.30.00,00.000/- {Rupees Three
Hundred and Thirty Crores only} and resuttant alteration of Capital Clause of the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association.

03.47.14

1 28.07.14

Increase in the Borrowing Limits not exceeding Rs. 65,00,00,00,000/- (Rupees Six
Thousand Five Hundred Crores only}).

03.07.14

28.07.14

~]

Raising of Tier {1 Capital by issuance of debt instruments upto Rs. 4,08,16,00,000/-
{Rupees Four Hundred Eight Crores and Sixteen Lakhs only} or equivalent amount in
INR by issue of debt instruments in domestic eligible for inclusion in Tier H capitai.

03.07.14

28.07.14

Appaintment of Chief Financial Officer, Mr. Amith Tyer.

03.07.14

Revision in remuneration for the Financial Year 2014-15 to be paid to the Managing
Director,

03.07.14

28.07.14

10,

Increase/Modification of the amount to be borrowed through Commercial Papers |

not exceeding Rs. 26,00,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Thousand Crores enly).

16.09.14

AL

Buy back of Commercial Pa per issued by the Company.

16.05.14

12,

Issue of Non CLonvertible Dehentures upto Rs. 4,00,00.00.000/- {Rupees Four
Hundred Crores nnly}

28.10.14

13,

Issue of 6,25,00,600 (Six Crores Twenty Five Lakhs only) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/
{Rupees Ten only) each for cash at a preminm of Rs. 5/- (Rupees Six Only)
aggregarng to Rs. 1,00,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred Crores Only) on Rights
Basis.

28.10.14

14,

Appointment of Mr.Bipin Saraf as Chief Executive Officer.

28.10.14

Resignation of Mr. Nilesh Shah, Director from the Board of the Company w.el

05:01.2015.

21.01.15

16.

Appointment af following Independent Directors:
1. Mr VR Kaundinya
2. Mrs. Madhu Dubhashi

26.02.15

*The members approval by way of Special Resolution was obtained on 17.02.2014.

(2] MAen crayp, |2
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AIS FINANCE £TD.

Statement Showing Asset Cover Ratio as on 31st March 2015

{Rs. in Lacs)

TOTAL ASSETS
Non Current Assets
Fixed Assets
Tangible Assets 22.80

a Intangible Assets 3.83

b Capital WiP 75.67 102.31
Deferred Tax Asset 181.76
Non current Investments 10354.59
Long term loans and advances 74484.43
Other Non current Assets 76.41
Total Non Current Assets 85195.49
Current Assets 261962.72

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short term borrowings 246575.23
Other current liahilities 11373.45

Short term prowsmns i 458.14

SHORT TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS
Interest accrued but not due 23971
_ Short term borrowmgs "

B PR 'ﬁﬁ;ﬁé gﬂquﬁﬂ@

3&!!%; e Mlég&gb »::ﬁ?i

JOTAL DEBT OUTSTANDING

Commercial paper 198657.14
Debentures 40392.67
Loc }

Axis Bank 3206.87

Punjab & sind bank 25062.88

Bank of Baroda 10029.15

10019.18

48318 08

={Total Assets- Intangible Assets}-(Current Liabilities-Short Term Debt Obligation)

Total Debt Qutstanding

Asset Cover Ratio = A - (a+b) - (B-C}

D




AAXIS FINANCE

1,

Annexure-fll

Management Discussions & Analysis

Industry Structure & Developments:

Liquidity conditions remained benign during FY 2014-15, the infiation rate came down
considerably and this has led the RBI to cut policy rates an more than one occasion during
the year.

The RBI also released the revised regulstory framewark applicable to NBFCs during
November 2014. Axis Finance has ensured compliance with the applicable provisions of the
framework.

Internal Control System & their adequacy:
The Company has an adequate internal control system o ensure that all its assets are

safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and that the
transactions are authorized, recorded and reported diligently. Moreover, the company
continuously upgrades these systems in line with the best practices.

The Company ensures adherence to the internal control policies & procedures as well as
compliance with regulatory guidelines.

Risks

Being a Financial company, AFL is exposed to specific risks that are particular to its business
and the environment within which it operates, including interest rate volatility, economic
cycle, credit risk and market risk. The most important among them are credit risk, market
risk and operational risk. The measurement, monitoring management of risk remains key
focus areas for the company.

Outlook

Outlook for the NBFC sector remains positive backed by the lower credit penetration and
huge capital formation requirement of the country. However, in the short term, the sector
may find the macro-economic environment challenging for growing quality book.

The expected downward shift in inflation might allow RBI to further ease its monetary policy
stance, although this is contingent upon future inflation expectations. Measures to remove
bottlenecks by the Government are also expected to revive capex.



AAXIS FINANCE

5. Financial Performance

The company recorded robust growth in its loan book during the year. The core assets

_ increased from Rs.1160 crores as at 31.03.2014 to Rs.2248 crores as at 31.03.2015. Total
Income increased from Rs.76.03 crores during FY14 to Rs.224.26 crores during FY15, while
net profit increased from Rs.33.47 crores during FY14 to Rs.78.16 crores during FY15.

Axis Finance recorded NIM of 6.83%, ROA of 3.33% and ROE of 16.37% during the year. The
company continued to maintain sound asset quality with NIL NPAs,

6. Human Resources & IT infrastructure

The company has a team of able and experienced team of industry professionals and
employees. It has been able to maintain its existing resources by keeping pace with changing
business environment and by ensuring staff continuity.

The company further strengthened its IT infrastructure & systems to support its business &
) operations. ‘



AXIS FINANCE ANNEXURE IV

Disclosure requirement _in_Annual Report as prescribed under Companies Act, 2013 —Human
Resources

The information relating to mahagerial remuneration in terms of Rule 5 {1} of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are detailed as under: —

(i) the ratio of the remuneration of each whole time director of the Company to the median
remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial year 2014-15;

Ratio of the remuneration of the whole time director of the company to the median
remuneration of the employees of the company are, Mr. Bipin Saraf, MD & CEO -1: 6.88.

Information is dnly in respect of whole time directors who are on rolls of the Company as on 31
March 2015

(ii) the percentage increase in remuneration of each whole time director, Chief Financial Officer and
the Company Secretary of the Company, during the financial year 2014-15, are as under;

Percentage increase in remuneration of Mr. Bipin Kumar Saraf, MD & CEO was 12%, Mr. Amith
lyer, Chief Financial Officer was 6.70% & Mr. Rajneesh Kumar, Company Secretary was 7.50%

{iii) the percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees of the Company during
the financial year;

Median remuneration of employees of the company decreased by 49% during the financial year
2014-15, as compared to the financial year 2013-14. This is on account of addition of manpower
in FY 15 in the lower & middle fevel management.

(iv) the number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company; -
The company had 17 permanent employees on its rolls as on March 31, 2015.

(v} the explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and company
performance; '

The company’s performance management and compensation philosophies are structured to
support the achievement of the Company's strategic business objectives. These strategic
priorities are cascaded through annualised objectives to the empioyees. Based on the Company’s
performance, individual performance, market benchmarks on compensation and attrition trends,
compensation strategy including increment benchmarks are proposed by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Directors of the Company for adaption by the Company.



@ _AXIS FINANCE

(vi) comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance
of the Company;

As stated earlier, the company’s performance management and compensation philosophies are
structured to support the achievement of the company's strategic business objectives.

The company follows a KRA approach in designing its- performance management system.
Adequate attention is given to robust goal setting process to ensure alignment of individual
objectives to support the achievement of business strategy, financial and non-financial goals
across and through the organization. The non-financial goals for employees includes customer
service, process improvement, adherence to risk and compliance norms, self-capability
development and behaviours such as integrity and team management.

Accordingly the remuneration for Key Managerial Personnel has been decided based on the
above parameters.

(vii} variations in the market capitalization of the company, price earnings ratio as at the closing
date of the current financial year and previous financial year and percentage increase over
decrease in the market guotafions of the shares of theé company iA corfipaniseon to the rate at
which the company came out with the last public offer in case of listed companies;

Not Applicable as our equity shares are not listed

(viii)  average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees of the company other
than its managerial personnel {viz. whole time directors of the Company} during the last financial
year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and
justification thereof and -point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the
managerial remuneration;

Average remuneration increase for Non managerial personnel of the company during the
financial year was 13 % and the average remuneration increase for the said managerial personnel
of the company was around 8%

{ix) comparison of the each remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the
performance of the company; ’

The company’s performance management and compensation philosophies are structured to
support the achievement of the Company's on-going business objectives by rewarding
achievement of objectives linked directly to its strategic business priorities. These strategic
pricrities are cascaded through anruslised objectives o the employees.

The remuneration is decided taking into account the company's performance, individual
performance and market benchmarks. The same is first approved by Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors and thereafter it is recommended to the
Board for its approval.
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Accordingly, percentage increase in remuneration of Mr. Bipin Kumar Saraf, MD & CEO was 12%,
Mr. Amith lyer, Chief Financial Officer was 6.70% & Mr. Rajneesh Kumar, Company Secretary was
7.50%

(x) the key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the Whole Time
Directors of the company;

e Percentage of variable pay for the MD & CEO to be capped at 70% of fixed pay (AFL is adhering to
RBI guidetines for Banks on the variable pay payable to MD & CEO.

(xi) the ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director ta that of the empioyees who are
not directors but receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the year

Not Applicable
(xii) affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company.

We affirm that the remuneration paid is as per the said Remuneration Policy of the company.

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 of The Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees
of the Company forms part of this Report. The Company had 2 employee(s) who were employed
throughout the year and were in receipt of remuneration of more than Rs. 60 jakh per annum
and none of the employee(s) were employed for part of the year and who was in receipt of
remuneration of more than Rs.5 lakh per month. In terms of Section 136 of the Companies Act,
12013, the copy of the financial statements of the Company including the consolidated financial
statements, the auditor’s report and relevant annexures to the said financial statements and
reports are being sent to the Members and others entitled thereto, excluding the information in
respect of the said employees containing the particulars as specified in Rule 5(2) of the said rules
which is available for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company during
business hours on working days of the Company up to the date of the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. If any Member is interested in obtaining a copy thereof, he may write to the Company
Secretary of the Company at the Registered Office. The financial statements, reports etc. of the
Company have been hosted on the website of the Company {www . axisfinance.in)



FORM AQC - 2
(Pursuant to Clause (h) of sub-section (3] of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with
related parties referred fo in sub — section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including

certain arm'’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of confracts or arrangements or fransactions not at arm’'s length basis

a) | Name (s) of the related party and nature of [ | NIL
relationship

b) | Nature of | : ENIL-
contracts/arrangements/transactions

c) | Duration of the contracts [/ arrangements /| : | NI
fransactions

d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements | @ | Nil

or fransactions including the value, if any

e) | Justification for entering into such contracts or | : | NiL

arrangements or transactions

fi | Date (s) of approval by the Board ;| NIL
g) | Amount paid as advances, if any D NIL
h} | Date on which the special resolution was | : | NIL

passed in general meeting as required under

first proviso to Section 188

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement er transactions at arm's length basis

a) | Name (s} of the related party and nature of | ;| Axis Bank Limited
relationship
b) | Nature of

—

Rent Paid
contracts/arangements/transactions Bank Charges

FD Inferest

Current Accouni Balance
LOC Account Balance

OPE Salary

N A W

Capital Infusion




8. Advertisement Exps Reimbursement
9. OPE Reimbursement

10. Venicle

11. IPA Commission Charges Paid

12. Retainership Fees Reimbursement
13. Internal Audit Fees

14. Escrow Fees Paid

15. Interest Paid on Line of Credit

14. Processing Fees received

17. Interest Paid on Bank O/d

c} | Duration of the contfracts / arangements / Coniinuous
transactions
a) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements Refer Financial statements
or transactions including the value, if any
e) | Date (s) of approval by the Board., if any Transactions at arm's length and in

ordinary course of business

Arnount paid as advances, if any

NIL

Details of materiat contracts or arangement or transactions at arm’'s length basis

a} | Name (s} of the related party and nature of Axis Securilies Limited
relationship
b} | Nature of 1. Internet Charges {Exps.)
gonfracts/arrangements/iransactions 2. Demat Charges
¢} | Duration of the coniracts / arrangements / Continuous
transactions
d} | Salient terms of the confracts or arrangements Refer Financial statemenis
or transactions including the value, if any
e) | Date {s) of approval by the Board, if any Transactions af arm’'s length and in

ordinary course of business

Amount paid as advances, if any

NIl




Details of material coniracts or arangement or fransactions at arm's lengih basis

a) | Name [s) of the related party and nature of Axis Capitai Limited
relafionship
b) | Nature of 1. Gratuity Recelved
contractsy/arrangements/fransactions 2. Service charges (Exps)
c) | Duration of the contracts / arrangements / Continuous
fransactions
d) | Sakent terms of the coniracts or arrangements Refer Financial statements
or transactions inciuding ihe value, if any
e} | Date (s) of approval by the Board, if any Transactions af arm's length and in

ordinary course of business

Amount paid as advances, if any

NiL

Details of material confracts or arrangement or fransactions at arm's length basis

a) | Name (s} of the related party and nature of Axis Asset Management Company 1id
relationship

b} | Nature of 1. Investment in Preference shares
confracts/arrangements/transactions 2. Disinvestment in Preference Shares

3. Dividend Received

c) | Duration of the contracts / armangements / Redeemable
transactions

d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arangements Refer Financial statements
or fransactions including the value, if any

e} | Date (s} of approval by the Board, if any 15 May 2014

Amount paid as advances, if any

NIL

Details of material contracts or arrangement or fransactions at arm’s length basis

a) | Name {s) of the related party and nature of Axis Trustee Services Limited
retationship
b) | Nature of 1. Annual Fees

contracts/arrangements/iransactions

b




¢l | Duration of the contfracts / arrangements /

transactions

Contfinuous

d) i Salient terms of the confracts or arrangements

or fransactions including the value, if any

Refer Financial statements

e) | Date [s) of approval by the Board., if any

Juiy 16, 2013

f) | Amount paid as advances, if any

NiL

SRINIVASAN VARADARAJAN BIPIN KUMAR SARAF
CHAIRMAN MANAGING DIRECTOR & CEO
Din No. 00033882 Din No. 06416744

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 22, 2015
Place- Mumbai




14th Floor,
S.R. Batiisoi & Co. LLP 35 Senapati Banat Marg
Chartered Accountants Dadar (West) .
Mumbai-40Q0¢ 028, India

Tel : +91 22 6192 0000
Fax : +91 22 6192 1000

Independent Auditor's Report

To
The Members of Axis Finance Limited (Formerly known as Axis Finance Private Limited)

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Axis Finance Limited (‘the Company’), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2015, and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with accounting principles generaily accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have
taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which
are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control retevant to the
Company's preparation of the financiat statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and the effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements, We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the financial statements.

4
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S.R. Batiisoi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
financial statements give the infermation required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2015, its profit, and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b)In our opinion proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d)In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

(e)On the basis of written representation received from the directors as on 31t March 2015, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disquaiified as on 31 March
2015, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(F) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and accerding to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigation against it which would impact its financial
position.

() The Company did not have any long-term contracts, including derivative contracts, foer which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

(i) As at March 31, 2015 there are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number: 301003E

N v

per Viren H. Metita
Partner
Membership Number: 048749

Mumbai
15 April 2015



S.R.Bariisoi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Annexure referred to in our report of even date
Re: Axis Finance Limited (Formerly known as Axis Finance Private Limited) (‘the Company”

0C))

(i(b)

),

Giii

(iv)

v)
(v

(viiXa)

(viD(b)

(viix(c)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and location of fixed assets.

Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification,

The Company’s business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements
under paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(iii)(@) and (b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and
hence not commented upon,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is an
adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the
nature of its business, for the purchase of fixed assets and for rendering of services. The
activities of the Company do not involve purchase of inventory and the sale of goods,
During the course of our audit, we have not observed any major weakness or continuing
failure to correct any major weakness in the internal control system of the Company in
respect of these areas. T

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company is not in the business of sale
of any goods. Therefore, in our opinion, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is reqular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, income-tax, service tax, value added tax, cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to it. The provisions relating to employees' state
insurance are not applicable to the Company.

As informed, sales tax, wealth tax, custom duty and excise duty are currently not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-
tax, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues were outstanding, at the year

‘end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

As informed, sales tax, wealth tax, custom duty and excise duty are currently not
applicable to the Company. :

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income
tax, service tax, value added tax and cess which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute,

As informed, provisions of sales tax, wealth tax, custom duty and excise duty are currently
not applicable to the Company.

‘._,—" -



SR Banusoi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accou

(viid)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xid

{xiD

For S.R

ntants

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and rules made thereunder.

The Company has no accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and it has
not incurred cash losses in the current and immediately preceding financial year.

Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by
the management, we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of dues to a financial institution, bank or debenture holders.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
given any guarantee for loans taken by others from bank or financial institutions.

The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year.
Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true
and fair view of the financial statements and as per the information and explanations

given by the management, we report that no fraud on or by the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

. Batliboi & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number: 301003E

i

per Viren H. Mehta

Partner

Membership Number: 048749

Piace: Mumbai
Date: 15 April 2015



AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Farmerly Axis Finance Private Limited

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2015

{Amount in Indian Rupees)

MNote No. As at As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders” Funds
Share capital 3 3,182,500,000 2,557,500,000
Reserves and surplus 4 2,719,190,619 1,563,545,574
5,901,690,619 4,121,045,574
Non Current Liabilities
Long term horrowings 5 2,884,000,000
Other long term liabilities 7 31,296,176 -
Long term provisions 8 18,552,044 13,991,0C0
2,933,848,220 13,991,000
Current Liabilities
Shaort term borrowings 6 24,697,523,182 8,008,434,551
Other current liabilities 7 1,137,345,049 16,675,531
Short term provisions 8 45,814,495 23,986,855
25,880,682,726 8,049,099,977
Total 34,716,221,565 12,184,136,551
ASSETS
Non Current Assets
Fixed assets 9
Tangible assets 2,280,260 476,203
Intangible assats 383,119 -
Capital work-in-progress 7,567,356 -
10,230,735 476,203
Deferred tax asset 18,176,178 10,283,065
Non gurrent investments 10 1,035,458,861 898,032,461
Long term loans and advances
a. Loans 11 7,420,817,575 5,596,200,000
b. Others 12 27,625,516 26,912,761
Other Non current assets 13.2 7,640,605 -
8,519,949,470 6,531,904,490
Current assets
Current investments 10 12,503,718,212 -
Trade receivables 13.1 30,775,120 50,562
Cash and bank balznces 14 103,595,287 173,685,373
Short term loans and advances
a. Loans 11 13,532,383,921 5,448,006,559
b. Others 12 3,473,502 1,599,345
Other current assets 13.2 22,326,052 28,890,222
26,196,272,095 5,652,232,061
Total - 34,716,221,565 12,184,136,551
Summary of significant accounting policies 21

The accompanying notes are forming part of financial statements

As per aur attached report of even date

For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
Firm Registration No.301003E
Chartered Accountants

per Viren H. Mehta
Partner

Membership No. : 048749
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 15, 2015

Forand on behalf of the board of Axis Finance Limited

Ve YR G

Srinivasan Varadarajan

Chairman
DIN No : 00033882

bt

Amith lyer

Chief Financial Officer

PAN No : AAJPI3L72}

Bipin Saraf
Managing Director
DIN No : 06416744

R_»,‘ka (oman
Rajneesh Kumar

Company Secretary
Membership No: A31230




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Formerly Axis Finance Private Limited

STAEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

{Amount in Indian Rupees)

Note No. For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Incame
Revenue frem operation 15 2,237,067,557 748,329,439
Other income 16 5,603,427 11,988,354
Total income {A) 2,242,610,984 760,317,793
Expenses
Employee benefit expense 17 64,897,236 49,200,381
Financial costs 18 933,162,098 153,645,547
Provisions and write off 19 25,784,300 23,475,000
Other expenses 20 44,935,850 23,819,321
Depreciation and amortization expense 21 409,168 57,549
Total expenses {B) 1,068,693,652 255,197,798
Profit before tax (C) = {A)-(B) 1,173,917,332 505,119,995
Tax expense:

Current tax pertaining to profit/(loss) for the current year 400,165,400 180,000,000

Deferred tax (7,893,113) (9,651,832)
Profit for the year/period 781,645,045 334,771,827
Earnings per equity share
{Face value Rs. 10 per share)
Basic
Computed on the basis of total profit for the year 2.88 1.54
Diluted
Computed on the basis of total profit for the year 2.88 1.54
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes forming part of financial statements

As per our attached report of even date

For S.R. BATLIBO! & CO. LLP
Firm Registration No.301003E
Charterad Accountants

\Jwedd

per Viren H. Mehta

Partner

Membership No. :- 048749
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 15, 2015

Forf§nd on behalf of the board cf Axis Finance Limited

.
W i B A
inivasan Varadarajan

Chairman

DIN No : 00033882

Amith lyer

Chief Financial Officer
PAN No : AAJPIZ172)

Bipin Saraf
Managing Director
DIN No : 06416744

Ropansi b rmi
Rajneesh Kumar

Company Secretary
Membership No: A31230




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Formerly Axis Finance Private Limited

Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2015
{Amount in Indian Rupees}

For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 1,173,917,332 505,119,995
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 409,168 57,549
Provision against standard assets 25,289,300 28,475,000
Amortization of debenture premium (1,430,915) (5,955,450)
interest on fixed deposit (5,603,427) (11,988,354)
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,192,581,458 515,708,730
Movement in working capital:
Decreasef{increase) in long term loan & advances {1,824,617,575) (5,602,700,000)
Decrease/{increase) in short term loan & advances {8,086,251,519} (5,207,088,629)
Decrease/{increase) in trade receivables (30,724,558} 88,301
Decrease/{increase) in other current assets 6,564,170 {26,803,948)
Decrease/(increase) in other non current assets (7,640,603)
Increase/(decrease) in short teym provisions 1,096,384 8,117,093
increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities 1,151,965,694 16,071,502
Cash generated from operations (7,597,026,551) {10,296,606,951)
Income tax paid {400,878,155) {202,006,915)
Net cash flow from operating activities [A) {7,997,904,706) {10,498,613,866)
B. Cash flow from investing activities .
Interest received on fixed deposit and NCD 5,603,427 11,988,354
Purchase of fixed assets {2,161,253} {533,752)
Payment for Intangibles (8,002,447} -
Maturity of bank deposits 170,000,000 (170,000,000)
Proceeds from sale of investment 74,453,639,458 -
Purchase of investrment : (87,133,353,156) (892,077,000}
Net cash flow from investing activities{B) (12,474,273,971) {1,050,622,398)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings {net of repayment) 19,573,088,591 8,008,434,591
Proceed from issue of shares (net of issue expenses) 999,000,000 2,481,000,000
Net cash flow from financing activities'{C) 20,572,088,591 10,489,434,591
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and equivalents(A+B+C) 99,903,914 [1,059,801,673}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3,685,373 1,063,487,046
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 103,595,287 3,685,373
Note: I March 31, 2015 March 31, 2015
Cash and cash equivalents includes:
Cash 3,795 1,954
Balance with banks 103,551,492 3,683,419
103,595,287 3,685,373
For S.R. BATLIBOI & CO. LEP Fog and on behalf of the board of Axis Finance Limited
Firm Registration No.301003E - :
Chartered Accountants .
" Srinivasan Varadarajan Bipin Saraf
(;_ Chairman Managing Director
DIN No : 00033882 DIN No : 06416744
per Viren H. Mehta e
Partner - ‘yu_u.l.- Kumar”
Membership No. :- 048749 Amith?yer Rajnsesh Kumar
Place: Mumbai Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Date: Aprii 15, 2015 PAN No : AAIPIZ172 Membership No: A31230



AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Formerly Axis Finance Private Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2015

1.

Corporate information

Axis Finance Limited {Formerly Axis Finance Private Limited, ‘the Company’) is a public Company
domiciled in india and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act 2013. The Company is
non-deposit accepting non-banking finance Company or NBFC-ND-SI| registered with Reserve Bank of
India (RBI). The Company is engaged in the business of financing of loans.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles in India {Indian GAAP). The Company has prepared these financial statements to
comply in all material respects with the accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies
Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014. The financial
statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention.

The Company follows the prudential norms issued by Reserve Bank of india for asset classification,
income recognition and provisioning for non-performing assets. Besides, additional amount is
written/off provided for where the management, on a review, considers it necessary.

2.1 Summary of significant accounting policies

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and

material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

. Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method whereby cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities of the Company are segregated and profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or aceruals of past er future cash receipts er payments

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured, The following specific recognition criteria must also be met
before revenue is recognized:

interest and other dues are accounted on accrual basis except in the case of non-performing loans

where it is recognised upon realisation, as per the income recognition and asset classification norms

prescribed by the RBI,

b. Income on discounted instruments is recognised over the tenure of the instrument on a straight-line
method.

¢. Dividend is accounted when the right to receive is established.

d. Front end fees on processing of loans are recegnised upfront as income.

e. Profit/(loss} earned on sale of investments is recognised on trade date basis. Profit/(loss) on sale of
investments is determined based on the 'weighted average' cost for investments

f. All other fees are recognized when reasonable right of recovery is established, revenue can be reliably
measured and as and when they become due.

g. Other revenue is recognized on accrual basis and no significant uncertainty exists as to its realization or

collection;

‘o




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Formerly Axis Finance Private Lirmited

IV. Fixed assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost, net off accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost
comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its
intended use. ' o
Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added to its book value anly if it increases the
future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other
expenses on existing fixed assets, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of
replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses
are incurred.
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss when the asset is derecognized.

V. Depreciation
Till the year ended March 31, 2014, Schedule X1V to the Companies Act, 1956, prescribed requirements
concerning depreciation of fixed assets. From the current year i.e. from April 01, 2014, Schedule XV has
been replaced by Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. The applicability of Schedule Il has resulted in the
following changes related to depreciation of fixed assets. Unless stated otherwise, the impact of the
current year is likely to hold good for the future years also.

(a) Useful lives/depreciation rates

Till the year ended March 31, 2014, depreciation rates prescribed under Scheduie XIV were treated as
minimum rates and the Company was not allowed to charge depreciation at lower rates even if such lower
rates were justified by the estimated useful life of the asset. Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013
prescribes useful lives for fixed assets which in many cases are different from lives prescribed under the
erstwhile schedule XIV. However Schedule It allows companies to use higher/lower useful lives and residual
values if such useful lives and residual values can be technically supported and justification for difference is
disclosed in the financial statements.

Considering the applicability of Schedule 1l, the management re-estimated useful lives and residual values
of all its fixed assets. The management believes that depreciation rates currently used fairly reflect its
estimates of the useful lives and residual values of fixed assets, though these rates in certain cases are
different from lives prescribed under schedule Il. Hence, this change in accounting policy did not have any
material impact on financial statements of the Company.

Pepreciation on fixed assets is calculated on the straight line basis using the rates arrived at based on the
useful lives estimated by the management. The Company has used the following estimated useful lives to
provide depreciation on its fixed assets.

Assets Estimated Useful Life {in years)

Tangible Assets:
tand & building 60
Computers 3

Furniture 8 Fixtures 10

Office Equipment

Vehicles

Intangible Assets:

e

Software
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Vi,

VII.

Vil

IX.

Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price
and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.
Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is cansidered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to thelr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent
market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining
useful life.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset
does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversatl is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisioning / write-off of assets

Non-performing loans are written off / provided for, as per management estimates, subject to the
minimum provision required as per Non- Banking Financial (Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies
Prudential Norms {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007.

Provision against loans and advances:
Provision on standard assets is made, as per notification DNBS.PD.CC.N0.207/03.02.002/2010-11 issued by
reserve bank of india, 0.25% of the outstanding standard assets.

Loans
in accordance with the RBI guidelines, all loans are classified under any of four categories i.e. (i} standard
assets, (if) substandard assets, (iify doubtful assets and (iv) loss assets.

Investments

Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date
on which such investments are made, are classified as current investments in accordance with the RBI
guidelines and Accounting Standard 13 on ‘Accounting for investments’ as notified under the Companies
{Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 . All other investments are classified as long-term investments.

On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and directly
attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties. If an investment is acquired, or partly
acquired, by the issue of shares or other securities, the acquisition cost is the fair value of the securities
issued.

Current investments are carried in the financiai statements at lower of cost and fair value determined on an
individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution
in value is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments.
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Xl

XiL

On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is
charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition and construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as a
part of the cost of such assets upto the date when such assets is ready for its intended use. Other
borrowing costs are charged to the statement of Profit and Loss.

Taxes on income

. Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected

to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

. Deferred Income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and accounting

income originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred
tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized
for deductible timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. In situations where
the Company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are
recognized only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realized
against future taxable profits.

. At each reporting date, the Company re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It recognizes

unrecognized deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as
the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax
assets can be realized.

. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The Company writes-down

the carrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonable certain or virtually
certain that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be
realized. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes virtually certain, as the case may
be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred taxes relate to the
sammne taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Provident fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as expenditure, when an employee renders the related
service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date
exceeds the contribution aiready paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after
deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for
services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the
pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.
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XIH.

XIV.

Xv.

Xvi,

Gratuity

The Company provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering alt employees. The plan
provides for lump sum payments to employees upon death while in employment or on separation from
employment after serving for the stipulated period mentioned under ‘The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972’
The Company accounts for liability of future gratuity benefits based on an external actuarial valuation on
projected unit credit method carried out for assessing liability as at the reporting date. Actuarial

gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

Leave encashment

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short term
empioyee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount
that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the year end. The
Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long term compensated absences are provided for
based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date. Actuarial
gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

The Company presents the entire leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an
unconditional right to defer its settiement for twelve months after the reporting date

Leases

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
leased item, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in
the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Contingent liahilities and provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the abligation, in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and
are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the cccurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a lability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financiat statements.

Earning per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or foss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potentiat equity shares.

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and on hand,
fixed deposits and short-term highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less
are readily convertible into known amount of cash apd-whj

vhich are subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value. Cash and cash equivalent does not inclu o~ it which is lien marked against borrowing.

Cei'
\©
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Notes to Finangial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2015

3. Share capital

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
2 I
Authorized:
330,000,000 (31 March 2014: 260,000,000) equity shares of T10/- each 3,300,000,000 2,600,000,000
Nil {31 March 2014: 40,000,000) preference shares of T10/- ezch* - 400,008,000
3,300,000,000 3,000,000,000
Issued, subscribed and fuHy paid-up:
31,82,50,000 (31 March 2014: 255,750,000} equity shares of ¥10/- each 3,182,500,000 2,557,500,600
* Preference shares are cancelled during F.Y. 2014-15
{a) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amaunt outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Equity shares
Parch 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
No, z No. ke
At the beginning of the year 255,750,000 2,557,500,000 5,750,000 57,500,000
Issued during the year 62,500,000 625,000,000 250,000,000 2,500,000,000
Outstanding at the end of the year 318,250,000 3,182,500,000 255,750,000 2,557,500,000
Preference shares
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
No. T No. g

At the beginning of the year - - - B
Redeemed/fconverted during the year - - - -
Cutstanding at the end of the year - - - -

(b} Terms/right attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each hoider of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the
Company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be In the proportien of
the number of shares held by the shareholders.

{c) In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The
distribution witt ba in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

{d) Shares held by holding/ultimate holding Company and/or their subsidiaries/associates
Qut of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding Company, ultimate holding Company and their subsidiaries/ associates are 25 below:

Name of shareholder March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
2 Z

Axis Bank Limited, the holding Company and ifs nominges
318,250,000 (March 31 2014: 255,750,000) equity shares of T10/- each 3,182,500,000 2,557,500,000

{e) Details of shareholders holding mare tkan 5% shares in the Company

Name of sharehalder March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

No. 2% of holding No. % of holding
Equity shares of T10 each fully paid
Axis Bank Limnited, the holding Company and its nominees 318,250,000 100% 255,750,000 100%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding
represents both lagal and beneficlal ownerships of shares.

4. Reserve and surplus

March 31, 2015 March 3%, 2014
¥ T

Security premium reserve
Balance as per last Balance Sheet 826,000,000 845,000,000
Add:- Addition during the year 375,000,000 -
Less:- Utlization during the year against share Issue expense 1,000,000 19,000,000
Balance at the end of the year 1,200,000,000 526,000,000
Statutory reserve u/s 45-1C of RBI Act
Balance as per last Balance Sheet 148,100,000 21,100,000
Add:- Addition during the year 156,400,000 67,000,000
Balance at the end of the year 304,500,000 148,100,000
Surplwus in the statement of profit and loss
Balance as per last Balance Sheet 585,445,574 321,673,747
Profit for the year 781,645,045 334,771,827
Less:-Transfer to statutory reserve {156,400,000) (67,000,000}
Balance at the end of the year 1,214,690,619 589,445,574
Total 2,719,190,619 1,563,545,574

g
’/i‘”rf/
-




5. Long term horrowings

Non-current portion

Current maturities*

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

g T T g
Debentures:Secured 2,884,000,000 - 1,100,000,000 -
Total 2,834,000,000 - 1,100,000,000 -

* Amtount disclosed under the head 'Other current liahilities' (Refer Note No.7).

a. Security details for Secured non convertible debentures

Debentures are secured by: 1. First charge by way of mortgage on immovabte property. 2. Parri passu charge by way of hypothecation of baak debts and account receivable upto 1 time
cover.

b. Particulars of Secured non convertihte debentures

Particulars Face Value Quantity Date of Redemption | As at March 31, 2015 | As at March 31, 2014
8.7535% AFL 21/01/2016 1,000,000 500 January 21, 2016 500,000,000 -
Zera% AFL, 20th November 2017 1,000,000 300 Novernber 20, 2017 300,000,000 -
Zero% AFL, 20th November 2017 1,000,000 70 November 20, 2017 70,000,000 -
Zercth AFL, 20th November 2017 1,000,000 120 November 20, 2017 130,000,000 -
Zero% AFL, 3rd March 2017 1,000,000 250 March 03, 2017 258,000,000 -
8.5565% AFL 3rd March 2016 1,000,000 600 March 03, 2016 600,000,000 -
Zero% AFL, 12th April 2018 1,000,000 150 April 17, 2018 150,000,000 -
Zero% AFL, 10th Agpril 2018 1,000,000 130 April 10, 2018 130,000,000 -
Zero% AFL, 10th April 2018 1,000,000 70 April 10, 2018 70,000,000 -
8.84% AFL, 08th March 2018 1,000,000 S0 March 08, 2018 50,000,000 -
8.7944% AFL, 24th Aprii 2018 1,000,000 180] April 24, 2018 180,000,000 -
B.7731% AFL, 28th March 2018 1,000,000 500 March 28, 2018 500,000,000 |
Zero% AFL, 2nd May 2017 1,000,000 384/ May 02, 2017 384,000,000 -
Zero% AFL, 10th April 2017 1,000,000 110 April 10, 2017 110,000,000 -
Zero% AFL, 10th April 2017 1,000,000 60 April 30, 2017 60,500,000 -
Zero% AFL, 3rd April 2018 1,000,000 350 April 03, 2018 350,000,000 -
Zero% AFL, 27th March 2018 1,000,000 150 March 27, 2018 150,000,000, -
Total 3,984,000,000 -
6. Short term borrowings

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
. 2 T

Secured
Loan fram banks 4,511,121,435 2,754,328,623
Unsecured
Loan from banks 320,687,445 460,459,931
Unsecured commereial paper 20,180,000,000 4,990,000,000
Less: Unexpired Discount (314,285,698) (206,353,963
Total 24,697,523,182 8,008,434,591

Short term borrowings amount to Rs. 4,511,121,435 {previous year Rs. 2,764,328,623) refeerred above are secured by parri passu first charge on all present and future book debts,
receivables, koan assets of the Company, This carry interest @ 9.50% to 10.5%

Unexpired discount on commercial paper is net of Rs 283,604,558 (previous year Rs. 91,396,986} towards interest acerued but not due, These carries interest 8.75% to 11.50%.In respect of
commerdal paper maximum amount outstandin during the year was Rs 19,880,523,112. (previous year Rs. 5,745,558,205)

7. Other liabilities

Long term Short term
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
T T T 3
Currant maturities of long term barrowings - - 1,100,000,000 -
interest accrued but not due 31,296,176 - 23,871,355 -
interest received in advance - - 84,760 -
Creditors for expenses -
-Due to holding Company 'Axis Bank Limited' - - 6,439,752 6,392,869
-Due to others - - 4,820,530 9,141,536
-Undisputed statutory dues - - 2,028,652 1,141,126
Total 31,295,176 - 1,137,345,059 16,675,531
8. Provisions
Long term Short term
PMarch 31, 2015 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2015 March 31, 2013
(4 I Z ¥
Provision against standard assets 18,552,044 13,991,000 35,837,256 15,105,000
Provision for employee benefits
-Provision for compensated absences - - 1,035,016 487,378
-Provision for gratuity - - 819,223 1,621,477
-Employee benefit payable - - 8,123,000 6,772,000
Total 18,552,044 13,991,000 45,814,495 23,989,855

e
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10. Investment

Nen current Current
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
T T 3 T
Investment in debenture/bonds {vajred at cost unless stated otherwise)
Guoted
110 [Previous yeer Nil] Annepurna Microfinance Private Limited {redeemable on 15 April 2016) 30,018,106 - - -
110 (Previous year Nil} Arohan Financial Services Private Limited {redesmabta on 15 Apri! 2016) 19,877,841 - - -
66 (Previous year Nil} Asirvad Micro finence Private Limited {redeemabie on 15 Aprii 2016) 18,010,863 - - -
500 (Previous year Nil} Dalmia Cenent {Bharat} Limited - 500,000,000 -
100 [Previous year Nil} Disha Micrefin Private Limited (redeemable on 15 Aprii 2016) 27,179,200 - - -
110 {Previous year Nil} Future Financial Services Ltd {redeemable on 15 April 2018) 28,897,120 - - -
78 [Previous year Nil} India Schoo! Finance Company {redeemable on 15 April 2016} 21,285,566 - - -
77 {Previous year Nil} Intrepid Finance and teasing Private Limited {redeemable on 15 April 2018) 21,040,765 - - -
110 {Previous year Nil) Pahal Financial Services {redeemable on 15 April 2016) 30,018,106 - - -
132 (Previous year Nil} Suryoday Microfinance Private Limited [redeemable on 15 April 2016) 35,827,985 - - -
B9 {Previous year Nil} Svasti Microfinance Private Limited {redeemable on 15 April 2015} - - 3,718,212 -
99 (Previous year Nilj SV Creditline Private Limited {redeemable on 15 April 2016) 27,016,295 - - -
4,420 {Previous year 64,720} 8.67% National Hydroelectric Power Corporation (redeemable on 02 4,420,000 64,420,000 - -
767 (Previous year 97,167} 8.67% Power Finance Corporation ( redeemable on 16 November 2033) 767,000 97,167,000 - -
Nil {Previous year 36,098) 8.76% National Housing Bank {redeemable on 13 January 2034) - 180,490,000 - -
Ungucted
Mil{Previous year 5500} SGGD Projects Development Private Limited( - 555,955,461 - -
redemable on 28 September 2015)
760 (Previous year Nil) Azalea Enterprises Private Limitad {redeemable on 16 March 2019) 760,000,000 - - -
Invastment in Mutual funds (valued at lower of cost or market value}
Unqueoted
Axis Liquid Fund - IP - Grawth - - 12,000,000,000 -
Total 1,035,458,861 898,032,461 12,503,718,212 -
1. Aggregate amount of quoted investment (Merket value Rs.794,162,215) [previous year Rs. 352,961,29G)
2. Aggregate amaunt of unguoted investmants at cost Rs. 12,760,000,000 {previcus year 555,955,461)
11. Loans
Non curreat Current
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2034 March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
T T T ke
Secured loans 7,420,817,575 5,596,200,000 12,282,383,921 5,448,006,558
Unsecured loans - - 1,250,000,000 -
Total 7,420,817,575 5,596,200,000 13,532,383,971 5,448,008,55%

The classHication of lcans under RBI guidelines is a5 under

March 31, 2015
g

March 31, 2014
4

[t} Standard assets

(i) Sub-standard assets
{iii) Doubtful assets
fiv) Loss assets

20,953,201,496

11,044,206,559

Leans to the extent of Rs, 19,702,201,496 (Previous year Rs. 11,044,206,559) are secured by:
(i} Hypothecation of assets and/or

(i) Mortgage of property and/or

{iii} Bank guarantees, Company guarantee or personal guarntee and/for

{iv) Pledge of sharas

12. Others

Non-current Current
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014 Mearch 3%, 2015 March 31, 2014
T T ke T

Other loans and advances

Security deposits, unsecured, considered good 6,500,000 6,500,000 - -
Advance tax (net of provision for tax ) 21,125,516 20,412,761 - B
Prepaid expenses - - 3,452,652 169,991
Cther advances - - 20,850 1,429,354
Total 27,625,516 26,912,761 3,473,502 1,599,345




13. Trade receivables and other assets

13.1 Trade receivables

Non-current Current
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
T T i <
Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Qutstanding fer a peried exceeding six months from the date they are due for payment
Unsecured, censidered pood - . N N
Doubtful - - - 1,248,138
- - - 1,248,136
Frovision for doubtful receivables - - - 1,248,136}
{A) . - - .
Qutstanding for 2 period less than six menths from the date they are due for payment
Unsecured, considered good : - - 30,775,120 50,562
Boubtful - - - -
- 30,775,120 50,562
Provision for doubtful receivables - - - -
(8} - - 30,775,120 50,562
Total (&) + {B) - - 30,775,120 50,562
13.2 Other assets
Non current Current
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
g g k4 T
Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposit - . - 10,229,606
Interest accrued but not due on others 7,640,605 - 22,326,052 18,660,616
Total 7,640,605 - 22,326,052 28,890,222
14. Cash and bank bafances
Non current Current
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014 March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
T ke T T
Cash and cash equivalents:
- Cash on hand - - 3,795 1,954
Balances with banks:
- On current accounts - - 103,591,492 3,683,419
- Deposits with original maturity for fess than 3 menths - - - -
A - . - 103,595,287 3,685,373

Other bank balances

— Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months - - - .
— Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months under lien - - - 170,000,000
— Deposits with criginal maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months - - -
— Deposits with eriginal maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 manths under lien - - -

B - - - 170,000,000

Total {A+B}) - - 103,595,287 173,685,373

15. Revenue from operations

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
i T

Enterest income

Interest incgme on loans 1,748,601,140 444,952,330
Interest income on investments 84,197,450 50,634,804
Other operating revenue

Income from processing fees 256,759,327 132,314,671
income from advisory fees 49,450,000 39,891,500
Profit on sale of investments $2,440,424 *64,932,616
Other operating income 5,559,216 15,603,518
Total 2,237,007,557 748,329,439

16. Other income

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
T g
Interest on fixed deposit 5,603,427 11,988,354
Total 5,603,427 11,988,354

17. Employee benefits expense

for the yearended  For the year ended

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Z T
Salaries 63,138,086 48,313,980
Contribution to provident & other funds 1,318,820 840,548
Staff welfare 440,330 45,852
Total - 64,897,236 49,209,381




18. Finance costs

For the year ended
March 31, 2015

For the year ended
March 31, 2014

T T
Interest an {gan from bank and other financial expenses $21,280,653 147,373,950
Other finance expenses 11,881,445 6,271,597
Total 933,162,098 153,645,547

19. Provisions and write off

For the year ended
March 31, 2015

For the year ended
March 31, 2014

3 T
Provisien against standard assets 25,289,300 28,475,000
Total 25,285,300 28,475,600

20, Other expense

For the year ended
March 31, 2015

For the year ended
March 31, 2014

g ks

Rent 9,614,028 8,578,063
Electricity expenses 305,012 724,344
Repairs and maintenance - athers 1,606,962 552,640
Printing and stationery 237,282 129,310
Travelling and conveyance 2,906,074 2,288,279
Professional fees 6,427,480 7,766,215
CSR expenditure 5,356,320 -
Director sitting fees 150,000 -
Stamp Duty 2,273,500 - ,680
Auditors remuneration:

Statutory audit 1,400,000 1,100,000
Telephone and internet expenses 537,944 420,571
Business prometion 1,839,188 85,452
Rates & taxes 642,130 -
Service charges 1,024,865 446,353
Office expenses 1,027,693 775,260
Service tax exps 6,689,378 -
Miscellaneous expenses 2,303,864 962,514
Total 44,935,850 23,818,321

21. Depraciation and amortization expense

For the year ended
March 31, 2015
Z

For the year ended
March 31, 2014
T

Depreciation of tangible assets
Total

405,168

57,549

409,168

57,549




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Farmerly Axis Finance Private Limited

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account - ¥ 1,515,000 {Previous

Year T Nil}.

There is no contingent liability as at March 31, 2015 {previous year T Nil}.

There are no restructured loans as at March 31, 2015

Basic and Diluted Earnings per share (EPS) computed in accordance with Accounting Standard {AS) 20

“Earnings per share”

Particulars 2014 -2015 | 2013 -2014
g I

Basic

Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss A 781,645,045 | 334,771,825
Weighted Average Number of Shares B 271,160,859 | 217,393,836
Basic Earnings per share A/B 2.88 1.54
Diluted

Adjusted Profit after tax C 781,645,045 | 334,771,825
Weighted Average Number of Shares D 271,160,959 | 217,393,836
Diluted Earnings per share ¢/D 2.28 1.54
Noeminal Value per share 10 10

Segment Information :

"The Company is engaged primarily in the NBFC and its business operations are concentrated in india.
Accordingly there are no separate business segments and geographical segments as per Accounting

Standard 17 - Segment Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.'

Related parties disclosure:

Disclosure in respect of Related Parties pursuant to Accounting Standard — 18:

List of Related Parties:-
Parties where control exists: Holding Company
Axis Bank Limited (“ABL")

Fellow subsidiaries companies

Axis Private Equity Limited {“APEL")

Axis Securities Limited {"ASL")

Axis Mutual Fund Trustee Limited {“AMFTL")

Axis Trustee Services Limited {“ATSL")

Axis Asset Management Company Limited (“AAMCL”)
Axis Bank U.K. Limited {("ABUKL")

Axis Capital Limited (“ACL")

Axis Securities Europe Limited (“ASEL”)

Enam International Limited {“EIL”) (Upto August 24, 2014)

Key management person
Mr. Bipin K Saraf, MD

Joint Venture of Holding Company

Bussan Auto Finance India Private Limited {"BAFiP|




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Formerly Axis Finance Private Limited

Transactions with related parties

. Ke
) Holding FE|.|O.W Managgment Total
Particulars Company Subsidiary
3 > Personnel 4
3
Income
Processing fees 27,901,326 - - 27,901,326
(ABL) () (-) (-) {-)
interest on fixed 5,603,427 - - 5,603,427
Deposit (ABL) {11,988,354) (-) (-) (11,988,354)
Dividend Received - 1,396,164 - 1,396,164
(AAMCL) () 0 0 B
Gratuity Received - 53,954 - 53,954
(ACL) ) () () ()
Capital Receipts and
Payments
Purchase of fixed asset 651,427 - - 651,427
{ABL) {-) () (-} (-)
Issue of Equity Share 1,000,000,000 - - 1,000,000,000
Capital {Including Share {-) {-) {-) {-)
premium) (ABL)
Issue of - 200,000,000 - 200,000,000
Preference Shares {-) {-) {-) {-)
(AAMCL)
Redemption of - 200,000,000 - 200,000,000
Preference Shares (-) (-) {-) (-)
(AAMCL)
Expenses
Rent paid (ABL) 9,612,300 - ; 9,612,300
{7,583,036) {-) {-) {7,583,036)
Bank charges (ABL) 9,715 - - 9,715
{48,613) {-) (-) {48,613)
Recovery of expenses - - - -
{ACL) {-) (771,995) {-) {771,995)
Reimbursement of staff 26,979,669 - - 26,979,669
cost (ABL) (23,035,671) {-) {-) {23,035,671)
Commission charges - - - -
(160,000) {-) {-) (160,000)
Interest paid on 15,900,549 - - 15,900,549
horrowings (ABL) {12,681,680) {-} {-) (12,681,680)
internet charges paid - 117,572 - 117,572
(ASL) -) (27,833) {-) (27,833)
Demat Charges (ASL) - 71,898 - 71,898
() (-) (-} ()
Professional fees - 500,000 - 500,000
{ATSL) {-) {25,000) (-) {25,000)
Salary and contribution - - 10,420,407 10,420,407
to PF {-) {-) (10,233,725} {10,233,725)
Service charges (ACL) - §95,564 - 995,564
(-) {(446,087) {-) (446,087)

L




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Formerly Axis Finance Private Limited

Other Reimbursement
of Expenses (ABL)

5,576,868

5,976,863

(1,981,933)

{1,981,933)

Closing Balance

Share Capital
{ABL)

3,182,500,000

3,182,500,000

{2,557,500,000)

(2,557,500,000)

Sundry receivables

{ABL) {5,620} (-) (-) {5,620)
Short term borrowings 320,687,445 - - 320,687,445
{ABL) (621,180,136) {-) (-) (621,180,136)
Fixed deposit - - - -
{ABL) {170,000,000) {-) {-) {170,000,000)
Interest receivable - - - -
{ABL) {10,229,606) {-) (-) {10,229,606)
Current account 101,457,220 - - 101,457,220
batance {ABL) (3,429,990) {-) -) {3,429,990)
Processing fees 17,571,610 - - 17,571,610
Receivable {ABL) {-) () () (-)
Sundry payables (ABL) 6,439,752 - - 6,439,752
(6,398,489) (-) {-) {6,398,489)
Sundry payables - 25,583 - 25,583
(ASL) (-) (5,711) {-) (5,711)
Sundry payables - - - -
(ATSL) (-) (25,590} {-) {25,590)
Sundry payables - - - -
{ACL) {-) (456,615) {-) {456,615)
Note: -

1. Related party relationships and transactions have been identified by the Management and relied

upon by the Auditors.

2. The remuneration 1o the key managerial person does not include provisions made for gratuity and
leave benefits as they are determined on actuarial basis for the Company as whole.

3. Figures in bracket pertain to previous year.

28. Gratuity and other benefit plans

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or
more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary {last drawn salary) for each completed
year of service. The scheme is funded with an insurance Company in the form of a qualifying insurance
policy.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of

profit and loss and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the respective
plans.

Net employee benefit expense {recognized in employee cost)*:

2014-15 2013-14

) )

Current service cost 179,382 41,674
Interest cost on benefit obligation 175,494 13,020
Expected return on plan assets (23,399) (8,766}
Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the year 488,014 (568,675)
Past service cost - -
Transferred from group Company - -
Net benefit expense/{income) 819,491 {522,747)




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Formerly Axis Finance Private Limited

Provision for gratuity recognized in Balance Sheet*:

2014-15 2013-14
) )
Projected benefit obligation (2,709,067) 1,870,934
Fair value of plan assets 1,889,384 249,457
Less: Unrecognised past service cost - -
Pian liability 819,223 1,621,477
Actual return on plan assets
2014-15 2013-14
& ®)
Expected return on plan assets 23,399 8,766
Actuarial gains/{losses) on plan assets {4,757) -
Actual Return on plan assets 18,642 8,766
Changes in the present value of the projected benefit obligation are as follows™:
2014-15 2013-14
) )
Opening projected benefit obligation 1,870,934 166,920
Interest cost 175,494 13,020
Current service cost 179,382 41,674
Liability transferred in - 2,217,995
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation 483,257 {568,675)
Closing projected benefit obligation 2,709,067 1,870,934
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows™:
2014-15 2013-14
) )
Opening fair value of plan assets 249,457 116,883
Expected return 23,399 8,766
Contributions by employer 1,621,745 123,808
Benefits paid - -
Actuarial gains/{losses) {4,757) -
Closing fair value of plan assets 1,889,844 249,457

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows*:

Gratuity

[nvestment with insurer

March 31, 2015

100%

March 31, 2014

100%

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on
that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled. There has been significant
change In expected rate of return on assets due to the improved st@’c”k ma&et«;scenano




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Formerly Axis Finance Private Limited

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown
helow™:

2014-15 2013-14
Discount rate 7.95% 9.38%
Expected rate of return on assets 7.97% 9.38%
Employee turnover 5.00% 2.00%
Salary escalation rate 7.00% 7.00%
The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation,

seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment
market.
Amounts for the current periods are as follows™:

2014-15 2013-14
) ®)
Projected benefit obligation 2,709,067 1,870,934
Plan assets 1,889,844 249,457
{Surplus) /deficit 819,223 1,621,477

Experience adjustments on plan liahilities - -
Experience adjustments on plan assets - -

*Information provided to the extent of infarmation available with the Company.

29. Deferred taxation:
In accordance with Accounting Standard 22 “Accounting for Taxes on Income” {AS 22), the Company
has accounted for deferred taxes during the year. Deferred tax comprises of timing difference on
account of following:-

Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) 2014-15 2013-14
) )
Depreciation (124,603) {32,266)
Provision for leave encashment (186,142) -
Provision on standard assets and doubtful debts 18,486,923 | 10,315,331
Total 18,176,178 | 10,283,065

30. Information related to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (Act) has been
determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with
the Company. There is no outstanding balance due to such parties at year end. {Previous year Rs. Nil).

31. Foreign currency expenditure and foreign currency income during the year was nil {previous year nil).

32. Capital to Risk-Asset Ratio (CRAR)

Sl. No. items 2014-15 | 2013-14*
(i) |CRAR (%) 17.18%  34.59%
(i)  [CRAR-Tier | Capital (%) 17.02%  34.35%
(i) [CRAR- Tier Il Capital (%) 0.16% 0.24%

(iv)

Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-ll capital

(v)

Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt

Instruments




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Formerly Axis Finance Private Limited

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

Exposure to Real Estate Sector

{ii) Exposure to Real Estate Sector 2014-15 2013-14*
3 I
a) Direct Exposure
(i) Residential Mortgages 20,111,449 -
(il} Commercial Real Estate 5,969,861,325 | 3,913,924,832

(iii) Investment in Mortgage Backed Securities{MBS} and - -
other securitised exposures - -

{a) Residential - -

{b) Commercial Real Estate - -

b} Indirect Exposure - -
Investment in Tax free bond of National Housing Bank - 180,490,000
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 5,889,972,774 | 4,094,414,832

No frauds have been reported during the current year and previous year.

The Company has not entered any derivative transaction (including forward rate agreement /interest
rate swap/ Exchange Traded Interest Rate {IR) Derivatives) during the current year and previous year
and there is no outstanding derivative transaction as on 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014
respectively.

There has not been any limit exceeded for single borrower limit and group borrower limit by the
Company in current year and previous year.

There are no advances/projects financed by the Company wherein intangible security such as rights,
licences, authorizations etc. are charged as collateral.

There are no registrations obtained from other financial sector regulator (other than RBl) by the
Company in current year and previous year.

There have not been any penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators on the Company in current year
and previous year.

india Ratings and Research Private Limited has accredited a long term rating of IND AAA for Rs. 800 crs
and a short term rating of IND A1+ for Rs. 5000 crs to the Company.

Name of Rating Agency Type Ratings | Amount (Rs. Tenure Validity
in crores)
India Ratings and Research | Long term IND AAA | 800 - -
Private Limited Short term | IND Al+ | 5,000 12 315 March, 2016
months

During the year, the holding company issued stock options to certain employees of the holding
company who are an deputation with the Company. Since these stock options are issued by the holding
company directly to the employees of the holding company, and the related costs, if any, will be borne
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AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Formerly Axis Finance Private Limited

43, Investments

44,

45.

46.

47.

(Amount in )

Particulars

Current
Year

Previous
Year

{1) |Va|ue of Investments

(i)

Gross Value of Investments

(a)

In India

13,539,177,074

898,032,461

(b)

Qutside India,

{ii)

Pro

visions for Depreciation

{a)

In India

(b)

Outside India,

(iii)

Net Value of Investments

(a)

In tndia

13,539,177,074

898,032,461

(b)

Cutside India.

(2) [Movement of provisions held towards
depreciation on investments.

(i)

Opening balance

(ii)

Add : Provisions made during the year

(iii)

Less : Write-off / write-back of excess

pro

visions during the year

{iv)

Closing balance

There are no securitisation transaction entered by the Company in current year and previous year.
Also, the Company does not have any securitisation exposures during the current year and previous

year.

The Company has not sold any financial assets to Securitisation/Reconstruction Company for asset
reconstruction and also not undertaken any"assignment transactions during the current year and

previous year.

The Company has not purchase/sold any non performing financial assets during the current year and

previous year.

There has not been any financing of parent Company products by the Company in current year and

previous year.




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Formerly Axis Finance Private Limited

48. Exposure to Capital Market

{Amount in )

securities or on clean basis to individuals for investment in
shares (including 1POs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible
debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds;

. 2014-15 2013-14
Particulars
{iy [|direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, . -
convertible debentures and units of egquity-oriented mutual
funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in
corporate debt;
(i) ladvances against shares / bonds / debentures or other| 1,335,605,140| 165,000,561

(i)

advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible
bonds or convertible debhentures or units of equity oriented
mutual funds are taken as primary security;

9,773,698,513

6,872,090,136

(iv)

advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the
collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where
the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds /
convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds
‘does not fully cover the advances;

secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and
guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market
makers;

(vi)

loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares /
bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis for
meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new
companies in anticipation of raising resources;

(vif)

bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows /
issues;

(viii)

All exposures to Venture Capital Funds {both registered and
unregisterqd)

Total Exposure to Capital Market

11,109,303,653

7,043,090,697

49, Provisions and Cantingencies

The hreak up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss
Account is as below:

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

g 3

Provisions for depreciation on Investment . -

Provision towards NPA - -

Provision made towards Income tax 400,165,400 180,000,000

Other Provisions and Contingencies

Provision for Standard Assets 25,285,300 28,475,000

Total 425,454,700 208,475,000

50. There have been no drawn down reserves during the current year and previous year.

g



AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Formerly Axis Finance Private Limited

51. Concentration of Advances

Concentration of Advances 2014-15 2013-14
Total Advances to Twenty Largest Borrowers T 1145.47 crores | ¥ 846.52 crores
Percentage of Advances to Twenty Largest 54.67% 76.65%
Borrowers to Total Advances

52. Concentration of Exposures
Concentration of Exposures 2014-15 2013-14

Total Exposure to Twenty Largest Borrowers /
customers

T 1145.47 crores

T 846.52 crores

Percentage of Exposures to Twenty Largest
Borrowers / Customers to Total Exposure of Axis
Finance on barrowers / customers

53.80%

76.65%

53. There are no NPA's of the Company for the current year as well as previous year.

54. There are no Off-Balance Sheet SPV’s of the Company for the current year as well as previous year.

55. Customer Complaints

2014-15 2013-14
{a) {No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year NIL NIL
(b) |Mo. of complaints received during the year NIL NiL
{c) INo. of complaints redressed during the year NiL NIL
{d} |No. of complaints pending at the end of the year NiL NIL

56. Previous year figures have been re-grouped, re-classified wherever necessary to conform to current

year's presentation.

For and on behalf of the board of Axis Finance Limited

WAy YD FO

Srinivasan Varadarajan
Chairman
DIN No: 00033882

Lt

Amith lyer

Chief Financial Officer
PAN No: AAIPI3172)

4

Bipin Saraf
Director

DIN No: 06416744

t LA WW‘

Rajneesh Kumar

Company Secretary

Membership No: A31230




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Formerly Axis Finance Private Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2015

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial company

&)

Amount
outstanding

Amount
overdue

Liabilities side :

{1)

Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial company
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:

{a) Debentures : Secured

4,039,267,531

: Unsecured
{other than falling within the meaning of public
deposits*)

(b) Deferred Credits

{c) Term Loans

{d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing

{e} Commercial Paper

19,865,714,302

(f) Other Loans (Bank's Line of Credit)

4,831,808,880

Assets side :

Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other than

{2} | those included in {4) below] :
(a) Secured 19,703,201,496
(b) Unsecured 1,250,000,000

(3}

Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting
towards AFC activities

(i} Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors ;

{a) Financial lease

{b) Operating lease

{it) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:

{a} Assets on hire

{b) Repossessed Assets

{iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities

{a) Loans where assets have been repossessed

(b) Loans other than (a) above




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED

Formerly Axis Finance Private Limited

{4)

Break-up of Investments :

Current Investments :

1. Quoted :

{i) Shares : (a) Equity

(b} Preference

{ii) Debentures and Bonds

503,718,212

(iif) Units of mutual funds

(iv}) Government Securities

{v) Others {piease specify)

2. Unquoted :

{i} Shares : (a) Equity

(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

(iii} Units of mutual funds

12,000,000,000

(iv) Government Securities

(v) Others (please specify)

Long Term investments :

1. Quoted :

(i) Shares : (a) Equity

{b) Preference

{ii) Debentures and Bonds

275,458,862

{iii} Units of mutual funds

{iv) Government Securities

{v) Others (please specify)

2. Unquoted :

{i} Shares : (a) Equity

{b) Preference

{ii) Debentures and Bonds

760,000,000

{iii} Units of mutual funds

(iv} Government Securities

{v) Others (please specify)

13,539,177,074

(5) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in {2} and (3} above ;
Amount net of provisions
Category Secured Unsecured Total
1. Related Parties **
(a) Subsidiaries
(b} Companies in the same group - - -
{c]) Other related parties - - -
2. Other than related parties 19,703,201,496 1,250.000,000 | 20,953.201.496
Total 19,703,201,496 . 20,953,201,496




AXIS FINANCE LIMITED
Formerly Axis Finance Private Limited

Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in
(6) shares and securities (both quoted and ungquoted}:

Market Value /
Break up or fair Book Value (Net of

Category value or NAV* Provisions)

1. Related Parties **
{a) Subsidiaries - -
{b) Companies in the same group - -
(c} Other related parties - -
2. Other than related parties 13,553,419,164 13,539,177,074

Total 13,553,419,164 13,539,177,074

* Disclosure is made in respect of available information

** As per Accounting Standard of ICAl {Please see Note 3)

(7) Other information

-1
i
i
H
i

Particulars Amount
(i) | Gross Non-Performing Assets '
(a) Related parties ] -
(b) Other than related parties -
{ii} | Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties -
(b) Other than related parties -

{iii) | Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt -

Notes :

1. As defined in Paragraph 2{1){xii) of the Non-Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 1998,

2. Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial (Non-
Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015.

3. All Accounting Standards and Guidance Notes issued by ICAl are applicable including for calculation of
investments and other assets as also assets acquired in satisfaction of debt. However, market value in respect
of quoted investments and break up/fair value/NAV in respect of unguoted investments should be disclosed
irrespective of whether they are classified as long term or current in {4) above,




